



Industrial Ethernet (RTE)

For Machine Vision Devices





Interface Protocol

Subject to change without notice Available as PDF file only Version: 1.0.0 Revision level: 29.11.2023 www.wenglor.com

Table of Contents

1.	Use	e for Intended Purpose3						
2.	Net	work Overview	3					
3.	Inpu	ut and Output Data	5					
	3.1	Device Status	5					
	3.2	Status of Processing Instance	6					
	3.3	Commands	8					
		3.3.1 General Commands and Status Behavior	10					
		3.3.2 Trigger Command	12					
		3.3.3 Load Job Command	13					
		3.3.4 Acquisition Start and Stop Command	13					
	3.4	User-Defined Process Data	14					
4.	Dev	ice Website and Software uniVision						
	4.1	Installation of Configuration Files						
	4.2	Device Industrial Ethernet	16					
		4.2.1 Device to PLC	17					
		4.2.2 PLC to Device						
		4.2.3 Teach Parameters						
		4.2.4 Error Handling	20					
5.	PRO	DFINET PLC Settings						
	5.1	GSDML File						
	5.2	Add Machine Vision Device to PLC Network	21					
	5.3	PROFINET Network Configuration						
	5.4	Configure Input and Output Data	23					
	5.5	Download Configuration to PLC	24					
	5.6	PLC Tags	25					
6.	Atta	ichments						
	6.1	Configuration File D001 (Default for B60)						
	6.2	Configuration File D101						
	6.3	Configuration File D201						
	6.4	Configuration File D301	27					



1. Use for Intended Purpose

Machine Vision Devices can communicate via various Industrial Ethernet (RTE) protocols to communication partners (e.g. PLCs) to exchange data.

Supported Machine Vision Devices:

Smart Camera B60

Supported protocols:

PROFINET



NOTE!

For details about Machine Vision Devices (e.g. conformance class), check the operating instruction of the device.

2. Network Overview

Connect the network cable from the Realtime Ethernet Connector (RTE) of the Machine Vision Device to the communication partner (e.g. PLC) or to a switch in order to work with several devices.

NOTE!

- For details about the Realtime Ethernet Connector (RTE) of the Machine Vision Device, check the operating instructions of the device.
- Before booting the Machine Vision Device, make sure that the RTE connector is connected.
- Do not use any hub in the PROFINET network. A switch may be used if both Priority Tagging and LLPD (100 Mbit/s, Full Duplex) are supported.
- Split the networks for LAN and RTE in order to optimize the performance of the Machine Vision Device.
 - » RTE for communication with e.g. PLC, PC with PLC software and further RTE devices.
 - » LAN for communication with e.g. PC with uniVision software, webbased visualization, LIMA communication and process data via Device TCP or UDP.





Depending on the protocol, the LEDs have different meanings.

PROFINET LED Meaning	Color	State	Meaning
MS/SF	(Off)	Off	No error
(System error)	(Red)	Flashing (1 Hz, for 3 s)	DCP (discovery and configuration protocol) signal activated by the PLC to find the relevant PROFINET device.
	e (Red)	On	System error
NS/BF (Bus error)	(Off)	Off	No error
		Flashing (2 Hz)	No data exchange
	(Red)	On	No PROFINET configurationSlow or missing physical connection
L/A	(Yellow)	Flashing	Machine Vision Device sends or receives Ethernet frames.
	(Off)	Off	No communication



3. Input and Output Data

In the view of the PLC, the following input and output data is available:

- · 8 Bytes Input: Device Status
- · For each Processing Instance
 - » Inputs (Device to PLC)
 - 8 Bytes Input: Status of Processing Instance
 - x Bytes Input: User-Defined Process Data
 - » Outputs (PLC to Device)
 - 4 Bytes Output: Commands
 - x Bytes Output: User-Defined Process Data



NOTE!

The size of the User-Defined Process Data is depending on the configuration file. For details, see section "6. Attachments".

3.1 Device Status

The Machine Vision Device sends the device status info with 8 bytes to the PLC. The following status bits are available (starting with bit and byte number 0). Not used bits are set to FALSE.

Name	Data Type	Bit Number	Byte.Bit	Description
Too big changes in position	BOOL	7	0.7	Is TRUE in case of unwanted position change. Check device website (-> Settings -> Position Sensor).
Crashed soft- ware service	BOOL	21	2.5	Is TRUE in case of crashed software services. Check device website for details.
Localize (device is blinking)	BOOL	30	3.6	Is TRUE in case of localizing. Deactivate localize via button on Machine Vision Device or via software wenglor Discovery Tool.



NOTE!

For details about the device status, check operating instructions of the Software wenglor Discovery Tool, the Machine Vision Device and the Software uniVision.

3.2 Status of Processing Instance

Each Processing Instance sends the status information with 8 bytes to the PLC. The following status bits are available (starting with bit and byte number 0). Not used bits are set to FALSE.

Name	Data Type	Bit Number	Byte.Bit	Description	
Operation Ready	BOOL	0	0.0	 Is TRUE if Processing Instance is ready for operation. Possible reasons for operation not ready: The Machine Vision Device has not yet fully booted or the start job is not yet fully loaded. A job is currently being loaded in the Processing Instance. 	
Acquisition Active	BOOL	1	0.1	Is TRUE when acquisition is active. Starting/stop- ping acquisition is possible via the commands (see section "3.3 Commands").	
Toggle Bit	BOOL	2	0.2	Changes between TRUE and FALSE every time a data evaluation is completed. It can be used to check for new results.	
Processing	BOOL	3	0.3	Is TRUE when the Processing Instance is evalu- ating data. The status bit can be TRUE for a short time (in case of a job with small process time) or for a long time (in case of a job with big process time).	
Command Acknowledge	BOOL	4	0.4	Is an echo signal of the command signal to verify that the command has been received.	
Command Ready	BOOL	5	0.5	Is TRUE if the Processing Instance is ready to receive commands. NOTE! Commands to Processing Instances may only be sent if the command ready signal is TRUE. The status of the command ready signal must therefore be checked, before commands are sent.	
Command Error	BOOL	6	0.6	 Is TRUE if there was an error in the command. Possible reasons for command errors: Several commands are sent at the same time Command parameter contains invalid entry Command load job fails because the job is not available 	

Bytes 0 and 1 provide the following status information:



Byte 2 returns the current job number.



NOTE!

All uniVision jobs must be saved in the following format: " $xxx_testjob.u3p$ " (x = any integer from 0 to 9). A maximum of 255 jobs can be used. The job number can be set between 1 and 255. Every uniVision job file needs an unambiguous number.

Bytes 4 to 7 provide the status of the Processing Instance (starting with bit number 0 and byte number 4). Not used bits are set to FALSE.

Name	Data Type	Bit Number	Byte.Bit	Description
WARNING	BOOL	0	4.0	Is TRUE in case of a warning. Check the reason of the warning
ERROR	BOOL	1	4.1	Is TRUE in case of an error. Check the reason of the error.
Data overflow	BOOL	3	4.3	Is TRUE in case of data overflow. Reduce the acquisition frame rate or the pro- cessing time of the complete job to avoid data overflow.
Command overflow	BOOL	4	4.4	Is TRUE in case of command overflow. Reduce the frequency to send commands to the Processing Instances.
FTP interface	BOOL	9	5.1	Is TRUE in case of errors at the FTP interface. Check the FTP interface.
Unlicensed module(s)	BOOL	20	6.4	Is TRUE in case of unlicensed modules. Check the modules in the current job.
Project not available	BOOL	21	6.5	Is TRUE in case of a not available job. Check the start job settings on the device web- site.
Processing	BOOL	22	6.6	Is TRUE in case of an error at processing. Check the job configuration.

NOTE!

- Status signals of the Processing Instance often apply for a very short time (e.g. processing bit). In order to receive all results at the PLC, the cycle time may only be half the length of the status bit.
- For more details about the status of the Processing Instance, check the operating instruction of the uniVision software.

3.3 Commands

Commands are sent from the PLC to the Processing Instance on the Machine Vision Device. The commands consist of 4 bytes (starting with bit and byte number 0).



NOTE!

Commands to the Processing Instance may only be sent if the command ready signal is active. The status of the command ready signal must therefore be checked before commands are sent.

Bytes 0 and 1 are used for the command bits.

Name	Data Type	Bit Number	Byte.Bit	Description	
Load Job	BOOL	0	0.0	When the value is changed from FALSE to TRUE, the Processing Instance loads the job that is defined by the command parameter.	
				 NOTE! For loading jobs via RTE all jobs must be saved in the following format: "xxx_testjob.u3p" (x = any integer from 0 to 9). A maximum of 255 jobs can be used. The job number can be set between 1 and 255. Every uniVision job file needs an unambiguous number. 	
Trigger	BOOL	1	0.1	When the value is changed from FALSE to TRUE, the Processing Instance sends a software trigger command to the Machine Vision Device. NOTE! The Trigger Mode of the device must be set to ON and the Trigger Source must be set to Software.	
Acquisition Start	BOOL	2	0.2	When the value is changed from FALSE to TRUE, the Processing Instance sends an acqu tion start command to the Machine Vision Device	
				Only when acquisition is active (check status bit), the device is ready to receive trigger signals. After booting or loading jobs, the acquisition is automatically set to active.	



Acquisition Stop	BOOL	3	0.3	When the value is changed from FALSE to TRUE, the Processing Instance sends an acquisi- tion stop command to the Machine Vision Device. NOTE! When acquisition is inactive, the device is no longer ready to receive trigger signals.
Reboot	BOOL	4	0.4	When the value is changed from FALSE to TRUE, the Machine Vision Device performs a reboot. NOTE! Reboot is finished after operating ready is TRUE again.
Teach	BOOL	5	0.5	 When the value is changed from FALSE to TRUE, the Processing Instance teaches or resets all values in the job tree linked to the teach parameters that are set to TRUE. Using the Teach command allows to teach or reset values in the job tree even if no data is processed in the Processing Instance (e.g. no trigger signals or acquisition stopped). NOTE! Set the relevant teach parameters to TRUE and then activate the command bit "Teach". Make sure that within the uniVision job tree the relevant value (e.g. Reset at Module Counter) is linked to the relevant Teach Parameter (e.g. Data Value of Teach 0). For details, see section "4.2.3 Teach Parameters". Only needed if teaching or resetting of values is required without data evaluation - otherwise it is possible to use the user-defined process data.

Byte 2 is used for the command parameter.



NOTE!

Make sure to set the command parameter (e.g. job number) first. Then send the command bit (e.g. to load the job).

Byte 3 is used for the teach parameters. 8 parameter bits are available for teaching or resetting of values.



NOTE!

Make sure to set the teach parameter bits first. Then send the teach command bit.



3.3.1 General Commands and Status Behavior

For each command that is sent from the PLC to the Machine Vision Device, an answer is sent back from the Machine Vision Device to the PLC via the status bits.



NOTE!

Commands to the Processing Instance may only be sent if the command ready signal is active. The status of the command ready signal must therefore be checked before commands are sent.

The following example of command and its status bits is valid for all types of commands.





- The command (e.g. trigger command) is sent from the PLC to the Processing Instance on the Machine Vision Device.
- · The Processing Instance answers with the status bits after receiving the command:
 - » The command acknowledge signal switches from FALSE to TRUE (echo signal of the command).
 - » The command ready signal switches from TRUE to FALSE.



• When the command that is sent from the PLC to the Machine Vision Device is removed, the command acknowledge signal switches from TRUE to FALSE (echo signal of the command).



• When the execution of the command is finished, the command ready signal switches from FALSE to TRUE and the Processing Instance is ready to receive a new command.



3.3.2 Trigger Command

When sending a trigger command from the PLC to the Processing Instance on the Machine Vision Device, new data is captured (in case of Trigger Source set to Software). While processing such data in the Processing Instance, the Processing bit in the status is active. After processing has been finished, the toggle bit in the status changes and the user-defined process data are available.

NOTE!

- After booting or job loading, a trigger command can be sent as soon as the command ready signal has switched from FALSE to TRUE.
- Use the toggle bit of the status to identify if the results that belong to the trigger signal are already available.





3.3.3 Load Job Command

When sending a load job command from the PLC to the Processing Instance on the Machine Vision Device, the Processing Instance loads the job defined by the command parameter. The number that is used in the job name must be sent by the command parameter.

NOTE!

- For loading jobs via Industrial Ethernet all jobs must be saved in the following format: "xxx_testjob.u3p" (x = any integer from 0 to 9). For example 002_myjob.u3p.
- A maximum of 255 jobs can be loaded. The job number can be set between 1 and 255. Every uniVision job file needs an unambiguous number.
- Make sure to set the command parameter first. Only afterwards send the load job command bit.
- The job is loaded completely when the command ready signal has switched back to TRUE and when there was no command error. Hereafter, the next command (e.g. trigger command) can directly be sent to the Processing Instance.
- The job number is also sent back via the status (see section "3.2 Status of Processing Instance").



3.3.4 Acquisition Start and Stop Command

When sending an acquisition start or stop command, the Processing Instance is ready or no longer ready to receive trigger signals. The trigger signals can be generated by the device itself (if Trigger Mode is set to Off) or via an external interface (e.g. software trigger via PROFINET if Trigger Mode is set to On and Trigger Source is set to Software).



NOTE!

After booting and job loading, acquisition starts automatically.



3.4 User-Defined Process Data

User-defined process data are configured in the uniVision job. Process data can be sent from the Machine Vision Device to the PLC and reverse. For details see section "4.2 Device Industrial Ethernet".

NOTE!



Compared to commands and status data that are updated continuously, process data is only evaluated and sent when data (e.g. image) is executed in the Processing Instance because of a trigger signal.

Use teach command and teach parameters to teach or reset values even if no data evaluation takes place (see section "3.3 Commands").



4. Device Website and Software uniVision

4.1 Installation of Configuration Files

Machine Vision Devices support several fix configuration layouts for the user-defined process data. The default configuration and further available configuration files are available in the attachments (see section "6. Attachments").



NOTE!

Details about minimum firmware versions of the Machine Vision Device for the various Industrial Ethernet protocols are available in the operating instruction of the device.

Loading another configuration file:

- · Select suitable configuration file (see section "6. Attachments")
- Download configuration file on the product detail page of the wenglor website (www.wenglor.com).
- Open device website in any supported browser via wenglor Discovery Tool or via entering directly the IP address of the Machine Vision Device.
- · Select tab "Interfaces" and side navigation "Industrial Ethernet".
- Press "Load Configuration File", select the configuration file and confirm the reboot info.
- · After the reboot, enter again the device website and check if the current configuration file name fits.



NOTE!

Perform another manual reboot in order to receive data on the PLC.

Ň	Dashboard	Interfaces	Jobs			ıl.	 •	Active
몲	Network (LAN)							
	ETD/OFTD			Industrial Ethernet Settings				
RN	Client			Load Configuration File	CHOOSE			
≓	SFTP Server			Current Configuration File Name	D001			
Ø	Industrial Ethernet			Current Industrial Ethernet Protocol	PROFINET			
				Current Configuration Description	DOWNLOAD			
				Interface Protocol Industrial Ethernet Interface Protocol	DOWNLOAD			

4.2 Device Industrial Ethernet

User-defined process data are defined within the uniVision job. Open the tab "Jobs" on the device website and click on "Open Job" in order to create a connection from the software wenglor uniVision 3 to the Processing Instance on the Machine Vision Device.



NOTE!

For details about the job configuration, check operating instruction of the uniVision software ($\underline{\text{DNNF023}}$).

Process time [µs]	Process time to run the module in µs
Module State	 Shows state of module: 0: No error Different to 0: Error (for error details see operating instruction of uniVision software).
Error Handling	If any user-defined process data is in error state, it is substituted by a user-defined replacement value.

Add Device Industrial Ethernet from the toolbox to the uniVision job tree.

NOTE!



Compared to commands and status data that are updated continuously, process data is only evaluated and sent when data (e.g. image) is executed in the Processing Instance because of a trigger signal. Adding Device Industrial Ethernet is only possible on a real device (not at offline jobs).



4.2.1 Device to PLC

Depending on the configuration file, the user-defined process data inputs appear.

Value	Shows the result of the process data (uniVision job result).			
Data Value	Set value manually or link it with any job result.			
Address Offset	Shows the address offset for the value. NOTE! The address offset has to be added to the first input or output address that is used for the Machine Vision Device.			
Data Type	Shows data type of the value.			



4.2.2 PLC to Device

Depending on the configuration file, the user-defined process data output appear.

Value	Shows the result of the process data (uniVision input value).			
Data Value	Shows the result of the process data (uniVision input value). Link Data Value of "PLC to Device" in other modules to evaluate it if data is processed in the Processing Instance because of a trigger signal.			
	NOTE! Process data from the PLC to the Machine Vision Device is received when data is evaluated in the Processing Instance because of a trigger signal.			
Address Offset	Shows the address offset for the value.			
	NOTE! The address offset has to be added to the first input or output address that is used for the Machine Vision Device.			
Data Type	Shows data type of the value.			





4.2.3 Teach Parameters

Teach parameter bits 0 to 7 appear as Sub-Module of Device Industrial Ethernet. Link Data Value of Teach Parameters in other modules (e.g. at value Reset of Module Counter) to teach or reset values in the job tree even if no data is processed in the Processing Instance (e.g. no trigger signal or acquisition stopped). Only needed if teaching or resetting of values is required without data evaluation – otherwise it is possible to use the user-defined process data.



NOTE!

To teach or reset, set the relevant teach parameter to TRUE and activate the teach command bit at the PLC (see section "3.3 Commands").

Teach	Shows the result of the teach parameter (uniVision input value).		
Data Value	Shows the result of the teach parameter (uniVision input value).		
Address Offset	Shows the address offset for the value.		
	NOTE! The address offset has to be added to the first PLC output ad- dress that is used for the Machine Vision Device.		
Data Type	Shows the data type of the value		



4.2.4 Error Handling

Substitute BOOL types by	If a BOOL value used in Device Industrial Ethernet is in error state, it is replaced by FALSE or TRUE (Default: FALSE).					
Substitute INT types by	If a INT value used in Device Industrial Ethernet is in error state, it is replaced by any user-defined INT (Default: 0).					
Substitute DOUBLE types by	If a DOUBLE value used in Device Industrial Ethernet is in error state, it is replaced by any user-defined DOUBLE value (Default: 0.0000).					
Substitute STRING types by	If a STRING value used in Device Industrial Ethernet is in error state, it is replaced by any user-defined STRING value (Default: Error###).					

If any process data is in error state, the substitution value can be set for each data type.

5. PROFINET PLC Settings

The integration for the Machine Vision Device B60 Smart Camera is shown with a Siemens S7-1200 PLC with TIA Portal V15.

5.1 GSDML File

The GSDML file is available on the wenglor website in the download section of the Machine Vision Device (<u>www.wenglor.com</u>). Download the GSDML file, unzip the file and install it on the PLC.

In the software TIA Portal V15, the GSDML file is added via "Options" → "Manage general station description files (GSD)".





Adjust the correct source path if necessary, select the file and click on "Install". After the successful installation, the status signals "already installed".

Siemens - C:\Users\MartinKn\Desktop\uniVision3\B60	PROFINET\B60 PROFINET							
Project Edit View Insert Online Options Tools	Window Help							
🦄 🎦 🖓 🖓 Save project 📑 🐰 🗐 🖹 🗙 🏷 호 연 호	🗟 🕕 🕼 🖳 🔝 🍠 Go online	Go offline 🛔 🛔	. III × 🗆 (Sear	:h in project>			
Project tree								
Devices								
B60 PROFINET								
🗧 🌁 Add new device								
🖉 🊠 Devices & networks	Manage gener	al station description	n files			×		
PLC_1 [CPU 1212C AC/DC/Rly]	Installed GS	Ds GSDs in the	project					
Pevice configuration								
🖞 Online & diagnostics	Source path:	C:\Users\MartinKn\De	sktop\uniVision3\G	SD_B60xxxx			a stand in more that	
Program blocks	0 • • • • •							
Technology objects	Content of in	nported path						
External source files	File		Version La	nguage	Status	Info		
PLC tags	GSDML-V2.	43-WENGLOR-860-202	V2.43 Er	iglish, Ger	Already installed	Smart Cam		
PLC data types								
Watch and force tables								
Online backups								
🕨 🔀 Traces							and the second se	
Device proxy data								
Program info								
PLC alarm text lists							Info Diagnostics	
Local modules								
Distributed I/O	ierai							
Ungrouped devices	<		111			>		
Security settings								
Common data	No 'propertie				Delete Install	Cancel		
Documentation settings	No 'properties'						properties.	
Languages & resources								

5.2 Add Machine Vision Device to PLC Network

Search in the hardware catalog for "Other field devices" \rightarrow "PROFINET IO" \rightarrow "Ident Systems". Select "wenglor sensoric gmbh", "wenglor ident" and add the relevant device to your network.

Then connect the Machine Vision Device with the PLC in the network view.

We Sie	mens - C:\Users\MartinKn\Deskto	p\uniVisio	on3\B60 PROF	INET\B60 PROFIN	NET											-	٩X
Project	t Edit View Insert Online (Options	Tools Windo	w Help										Tota	ally Integrated Au	tomation	
🕐 💁 🛃 Save project 📇 🐰 🗃 🙃 🗙 👒 🛨 (주 🗄 🗓 🔛 🔛 🔛 🖉 🖉 Go online 🖉 Go offline 🛔 🖪 🕼 🛠 🚽 🔢 🖉 dearth in projects 🙀													Tou	iny integrated Au	PORTA	L	
Project tree									. # = X	🗙 Hardware catalog 💼				Т			
	Devices							P Topology view	A Net	twork view	Device	view	Options				
198		m 🚽	Network	T Connections		고 않 보 문	H H +			Network or	venview						3
2				- test						1			Lu Catalan				
- I	B60 PROFINET									Y Device			♥ Catalog				181
te .	Add new device								-	▼ \$7-	1200-Station_	1	<search></search>			init init	2
63	Devices & networks		PLC_1		b60	-				•	PLC_1		Filter Pro	ofile: 🖂	All>	- 📑	12
8	PLC 1 [CPU 1212C AC/DC/RM		CPU 1212C		860 Single Port					✓ GSL	D device_1		• 🛐 Controller:	5			്ല്
2	Device configuration				Not assigned					,	060		🕨 🫅 HM				
0	V Online & diagnostics								÷.				▶ 🛅 PC system	s			2
	Program blocks								-				🕨 🛅 Drives & st	tarters			0
	Technology objects												Network ci	omponer	its		F
	External source files												🕨 🧃 Detecting	& Monito	ring		le t
	PLC tags								- 12				🕨 🧾 Distributer	d I/O			0
	PLC data types								_				Power sup	ply & dist	ribution		S
	Watch and force tables												🕨 🏢 Field devid	es			-
	Online backups												👻 🛅 Other field	I devices			2
	🕨 📴 Traces												Addition	nal Ether	net devices		se
	Device proxy data								~				👻 🛅 PROFINI	ETIO			ks
	28 Program info		<			>	100%	· · · · · · · · · ·	. 🕘	< 11		>	🕨 🕨 🚺 Drive	es			
	PLC alarm text lists		GSD device					Q Properties	1 Info	🚯 🖏 Diagr	nostics		🕨 🕨 🛅 Enco	oders			
	Local modules			L 10.1									🕨 🕽 🖬 Gate	way			E
	Ungrouped devices		General	IO tags	System constants	Texts) 👔 i/o				1
	Security settings		General		General								👻 🛅 Iden	t System:	5		sei
	Unassigned devices				General							_	🔻 🛅 w	englor se	ensoric gmbh		
	Common data)) 🕻	🖠 wenglo	r Ident		
	Documentation settings					Name:	GSD device_1					_	- 🕯	wenglo	rident		
	Languages & resources					Author:	MartinKn							860	Single Port PNS V5.4.	0 - V5.x	
•	Online access					Comment								Cont	rol Unit V2.2		
• • •	Card Reader/USB memory					comment.						<u> </u>		weQ	ube V1.1		
					-									Qew 📘	ube V1.4		
												~	PLCs	& CPs			
	Describe dance				-								🕨 🧎 Sens	sors			
~	Details view												PROFIBI	US DP			
	Name																
													-				

5.3 **PROFINET Network Configuration**

Switch to the device view of the Machine Vision Device and open the properties. Then setup the network configuration for the PROFINET interface of the Machine Vision Device and select a device name.





5.4 Configure Input and Output Data

Add the input and output slots according to the configuration file used on the Machine Vision Device.



NOTE!

Input and output slots must be added consecutively (without gaps and in the right order) in order to use the address offsets provided in the uniVision job.

The following example shows the default slot configuration for the Smart Camera B60 (D001).

3 Siemens - C:\Users\MartinKn\Desktop\uniVis	ion3\B60_Test\B60_Test									-	
Project Edit View Insert Online Options	Tools Window Help	en en la sectione de la section						Tot	ally Integrated Auton	nation	
Barlant terr		ad anime go ad anime and and and	VE 4.0 VE vi					× 10		FORTA	÷
	boo_rest v ongrouped devi	ces > boo [boo single Fort FN3	421410 - 42141		1		1	<u> </u>	ardware catalog		4
Devices				Topology vie	w 🔥 Networ	k view	Device view	0	ptions		_
🖬 🛄 🖬	b60 [B60 Single Port PNS V5.		Device overview							, Ç	1
		^	V Madula	Pack	Slot Laddrace	Oaddres	Tune	- v	Catalog		
2 💌 🗋 860_Test		=	★ b50	0	0	Q DUDICS	R60 Single Port	~	Search		1
Add new device			PN-IO	0	0 X1		b60	끝님			31
🐘 Devices & networks			Device Status	0	1 6875		8 Bytes Input		I Filter <all></all>		4
PLC_1 [CPU 1212C AC/DC/Rly]	S		Status of Processing Instance	0	2 76.83		8 Bytes Input	- 12	• 🛄 Head module		_ °
Device configuration			User Defined Process Data Int	put 0	3 84147		64 Bytes Input	11	• Module		
Q Online & diagnostics			Commands	0	4	6467	4 Bytes Output		 Input Modules 		
Program blocks			User Defined Process Data Ou	utput 0	5	68131	64 Bytes Output		1 Byte Input		1
Technology objects					6				12 Bytes Input	¢.	
External source files				0	7				16 Bytes Input	6	1
PLC tags				0	8				2 Bytes Input		
PLC data types				0	9				20 Bytes Input	6	1
Watch and force tables				0	10				3 Bytes Input		
Online backups				0	11				32 Bytes Input	¢	
🕨 🔄 Traces				0	12				4 Bytes Input		1
Device proxy data		¥				-	-	~	64 Bytes Input		1
Program info	< II > 100%		<				>	-	📗 8 Bytes Input		1
PLC alarm text lists	b60 [B60 Single Port PNS V5.4			Properties	🔄 🗓 Info 🔒	🞖 Diagn	ostics 💿 🖃	- 1	 Output Modules 		L L
Local modules	General 10 tags S	rtom constants Toxts							1 Byte Output		1
Distributed I/O	General To tags 3	stem constants Texts							12 Bytes Outpu	ut	1
Ungrouped devices	✓ General	Ethernet addresses						^	16 Bytes Outpu	ut	1
Security settings	Catalog information							×.	2 Bytes Output	t .	1
Common data	 PROFINET interface [X1] 	Interface networked with							20 Bytes Outpu	ut	1
Documentation settings	General								3 Bytes Output	t	4
Languages & resources	Ethernet addresses	Subnet	PN/IE_1				•		32 Bytes Outpu	ut	11
Online access	 Advanced options 		Add new subnet						4 Bytes Output	t	4
Card Reader/USB memory	Interface options								64 Bytes Outpu	ut	11
	Real time settings	IP protocol							📗 8 Bytes Output	t .	4
	Port 1 [X1 P1]										
a Detaile days	Identification & Maintenance	IP address	192 . 168 . 100 . 1								11
· Details view	Shared Device	Subnetmark	255 255 255 0								4
		Subilet mask									1
			ynchronize router settings with IO co	ontroller							1
Name			Use router								18
											10

5.5 Download Configuration to PLC

Compile and download the configuration to the PLC. Then assign the network configuration and the device name to the Machine Vision Device via the context menu.

Click on "Update list" to see all Machine Vision Devices in the network. Select the available Machine Vision Device, assign the name and close the window.



Click on "Go online". Check the status in TIA portal to analyse if the configuration of the PLC and the Machine Vision Device fit together.

W	🦞 Siemens - C:Users/Martin/Kn/Desktop/un/Vision3/860_Test/860_Test												-	a x
P	Project Edit View Insert Online Options Tools Window Help													
E	🗿 🎦 🛃 Save project 🚢 🐰 💷 📵	X S	± C# ± 🔂 🛄 📓 📓 🖉 Go online 🖉 Go offline 🛔 📑 📑 3	× 🖃	🔲 < earch in project> 🖓						100	F	PORTA	L
	Project tree		B60_Test ► Ungrouped devices ► b60 [B60 Single Port PNS V5							_ # = ×	< н			
	Devices				2 T	opology vie	w d	Network	view	Device view	10	Options		
	194		👍 b60 [860 Single Port PNS V5 💌 🔟 🕎 📿 🖽 📑 👘	Dovic	a oveniew						i E		-	15
2				Devic							1.			- 7
١ē	* 3 860 Test			- *? ^	Aodule	Rack	Slot	I address	Q address	Туре	ľ	Catalog		12
1 j	Add new device			~ •	• b60	0	0			B60 Single Port	<u>ا</u> <	Gearch>	tini kini	
-3	m Devices & networks			_	PN-IO	0	0 X1			b60		Filter Alb	- 1	12
i i	T DIC 1 [CRI 1212C AC/DC/Rbd		46 ⁹	~	Device Status	0	1	6875		8 Bytes Input	115	Head module		ß
Ĭž	Device configuration			_	Status of Processing Instance	0	2	7683		8 Bytes Input	1.	• Module		
ă	Quine & diagnostics				User Defined Process Data Input	0	3	84147		64 Bytes Input	11	- Input Modules		2
	Program blocks			×	Commands	0	4		6467	4 Bytes Output	11	1 Byte Input		0
	Technology objects			<u> </u>	User Defined Process Data Output	0	5		68131	64 Bytes Output	11	12 Bytes Input		-
	External source files					0	6				11	16 Bytes Input		Te
	PLC tags					0	7				11	2 Bytes Input		6
	PLC data types		-			0	8				11	20 Bytes Input		s
	Watch and force tables					0	9				11	3 Bytes Input		
	Online backups					0	10				11	32 Bytes Input		2
	Fina Traces					0	11				1.	4 Bytes Input		Tag
	Device proxy data					0	12				11	🚺 64 Bytes Input		ks
	Program info					0	13				1.	🚺 8 Bytes Input		
	PLC alarm text lists		•			0	14					🕶 🏢 Output Modules		
	Local modules					0	15					🚺 1 Byte Output		F
	Distributed I/O	V				0	10					🚺 12 Bytes Outpu	t.	Tar
	Ungrouped devices						10				ι.	🚺 16 Bytes Outpu	t .	les
	Security settings					0	10					2 Bytes Output		
	Common data						20				ι.	🚺 20 Bytes Outpu	t .	
	Documentation settings					0	20				ι.	📕 3 Bytes Output		
	Languages & resources						22				ι.	🚺 32 Bytes Outpu	t.	
	Goline access						22				ι.	🚺 4 Bytes Output		
	🕨 🥞 Card Reader/USB memory					0	24				ι.	🚺 64 Bytes Outpu	¢	
							25				ι.	🚺 8 Bytes Output		
						0	26							
	ta Dataila view	-				0	27							
	Details view					0	28							
						0	29							
						0	30			~	1			
	Name	_	< III > 100% •	<		п				>				



5.6 PLC Tags

Select PLC tags to add the input and output data to your PLC project. Use the address offsets and the data types provided within the uniVision job for the process data.



NOTE!

Data types and address offsets are available for all user-defined process data. The address offset must be added to the starting address of the first input or output address of the Machine Vision Device.

The following example shows status, commands and user-defined process data with the default configuration of the Smart Camera B60 (D001).

	i	Name	Address	Display format	Monitor value
1		"Device Status"	%IB68	Hex	16#00
2		"Device Status(1)"	%IB69	Hex	16#00
3		"Device Status(2)"	%IB70	Hex	16#00
4		"Device Status(3)"	%IB71	Hex	16#00
5		"Device Status(4)"	%IB72	Hex	16#00
6		"Device Status(5)"	%IB73	Hex	16#00
7		"Device Status(6)"	%IB74	Hex	16#00
8		"Device Status(7)"	%IB75	Hex	16#00
9		"Operation Ready"	%176.0	Bool	TRUE
10		"Acquisition Active"	%176.1	Bool	FALSE
11		"Toggle Bit"	%176.2	Bool	FALSE
12		"Processing"	%176.3	Bool	FALSE
13		"Command Acknowledge"	%176.4	Bool	FALSE
14		"Command Ready"	%176.5	Bool	TRUE
15		"Command Error"	%176.6	Bool	FALSE
16		"Job Number"	%IB78	Hex	16#01
17		"Status Processing Instance"	%IB80	Hex	16#00
18		"Status Processing Instance(1)"	%IB81	Hex	16#00
19		"Status Processing Instance(2)"	%IB82	Hex	16#00
20		"Status Processing Instance(3)"	%IB83	Hex	16#00
21		"User Defined Process Data Input BOOL 0"	%184.0	Bool	FALSE
22		"User Defined Process Data Input DINT 0"	%ID88	DEC+/-	0
23		"User Defined Process Data Input REAL 0"	%ID100	Floating-point nu	0.0
24		"User Defined Process Data Input CHAR 0"	%IB116	Character	'\$00'
25		"Load Job"	%Q64.0	Bool	FALSE
26		"Trigger"	%Q64.1	Bool	FALSE
27		"Acquisition Start"	%Q64.2	Bool	FALSE
28		"Acquisition Stop"	%Q64.3	Bool	FALSE
29		"Reboot"	%Q64.4	Bool	FALSE
30		"Teach"	%Q64.5	Bool	FALSE
31		"Command Parameter"	%QB66	Hex	16#00
32		"Teach Parameter 0"	%Q67.0	Bool	FALSE
33		"User Defined Process Data Output BOOL 0	%Q68.0	Bool	FALSE
34		"User Defined Process Data Output DINT 0"	%QD72	DEC+/-	0
35		"User Defined Process Data Output REAL 0"	%QD84	Floating-point nu	0.0
36		"User Defined Process Data Output CHAR 0"	%QB100	Character	'\$00'

6. Attachments

The configuration files are available on the wenglor website at the product detail page of the Machine Vision Device (see <u>www.wenglor.com</u>). For further info about the installation of configuration files see section "4.1 Installation of Configuration Files".

6.1 Configuration File D001 (Default for B60)

Basics

- Device Type: B60
- Protocol: PROFINET

Slot Configuration

- · 8 Bytes Input: Device Status
- 8 Bytes Input: Status of Processing Instance
- 64 Bytes Input: User-Defined Process Data
- · 4 Bytes Output: Commands
- · 64 Bytes Output: User-Defined Process Data

User-Defined Process Data Input (Device to PLC)

- 4 Bytes: 32 BOOL
- 12 Bytes: 3 DINT
- 16 Bytes: 4 REAL
- · 32 Bytes: 1 CHAR with 32 Bytes

User-Defined Process Data Output (PLC to Device)

- · 4 Bytes: 32 BOOL
- 12 Bytes: 3 DINT
- 16 Bytes: 4 REAL
- · 32 Bytes: 1 CHAR with 32 Bytes

6.2 Configuration File D101

Basics

- Device Type: B60
- Protocol: PROFINET

Slot Configuration

- · 8 Bytes Input: Device Status
- · 8 Bytes Input: Status of Processing Instance
- · 64 Bytes Input: User-Defined Process Data
- 64 Bytes Input: User-Defined Process Data
- 4 Bytes Output: Commands
- · 32 Bytes Output: User-Defined Process Data

User-Defined Process Data Input (Device to PLC)

- · 4 Bytes: 32 BOOL
- 60 Bytes: 15 REAL
- 64 Bytes: 16 REAL

User-Defined Process Data Output (PLC to Device)

- 4 Bytes: 32 BOOL
- 28 Bytes: 7 REAL



6.3 Configuration File D201

Basics

- · Device Type: B60
- Protocol: PROFINET

Slot Configuration

- 8 Bytes Input: Device Status
- 8 Bytes Input: Status of Processing Instance
- 16 Bytes Input: User-Defined Process Data
- 32 Bytes Input: User-Defined Process Data
- · 64 Bytes Input: User-Defined Process Data
- · 4 Bytes Output: Commands
- 4 Bytes Output: User-Defined Process Data
- · 32 Bytes Output: User-Defined Process Data

User-Defined Process Data Input (Device to PLC)

- 4 Bytes: 32 BOOL
- · 4 Bytes: 1 DINT
- 8 Bytes: 2 REAL
- 32 Bytes: 1 CHAR with 32 Bytes
- 32 Bytes: 1 CHAR with 32 Bytes
- 32 Bytes: 1 CHAR with 32 Bytes

User-Defined Process Data Output (PLC to Device)

- 4 Bytes: 32 BOOL
- · 32 Bytes: 1 CHAR with 32 Bytes

6.4 Configuration File D301

Basics

- · Device Type: B60
- Protocol: PROFINET

Slot Configuration

- · 8 Bytes Input: Device Status
- 8 Bytes Input: Status of Processing Instance
- · 16 Bytes Input: User-Defined Process Data
- · 64 Bytes Input: User-Defined Process Data
- · 4 Bytes Output: Commands
- · 4 Bytes Output: User-Defined Process Data
- · 64 Bytes Output: User-Defined Process Data

User-Defined Process Data Input (Device to PLC)

- · 4 Bytes: 32 BOOL
- 4 Bytes: 1 DINT
- · 8 Bytes: 2 REAL
- · 64 Bytes: 1 CHAR with 64 Bytes

User-Defined Process Data Output (PLC to Device)

- 4 Bytes: 32 BOOL
- · 64 Bytes: 1 CHAR with 64 Bytes